CR 107103

N

NASA

Reports of the Department of Geodetic Science

Report No. 125

THE NORTH AMERICAN DATUM IN VIEW OF GEOS I OBSERVATIONS

by

Ivan I. Mueller James P. Reilly Charles R. Schwarz

Prepared for

National Aeronautics and Space Administration Washington, D. C.

> Contract No. NGL 36-008-093 OSURF Project No. 2514





The Ohio State University Research Foundation Columbus, Ohio 43212

June, 1969.

Reports of the Department of Geodetic Science

Report No. 125

THE NORTH AMERICAN DATUM IN VIEW OF GEOS I OBSERVATIONS

by

Ivan I. Mueller James P. Reilly Charles R. Schwarz

Prepared for

National Aeronautics and Space Administration Washington, D.C.

> Contract No. NGR 36-008-093 OSURF Project No. 2514

The Ohio State University Research Foundation Columbus, Ohio 43212

June, 1969

 $d=(1+m+1)=0, \quad 0.5$

PREFACE

This project is under the supervision of Ivan I. Mueller, Professor of the Department of Geodetic Science at The Ohio State University, and it is under the technical direction of Jerome D. Rosenberg, Project Manager, Geodetic Satellites Program, NASA Headquarters, Washington, D. C. The contract is administered by the Office of University Affairs, NASA, Washington, D. C. 20546.

.....

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.	INTRODUCTION	1
2.	OBSERVATIONS	1
	2.1 Data Processing	3
	2.2 Data Screening and Rejection	4
	2.3 Distribution of Observations	7
3.	NETWORK ADJUSTMENT.	17
	3.1 Geometric Adjustment	17
	3.2 Short-Arc Orbital Mode Adjustment	24
4.	IMPLICATIONS REGARDING THE NORTH AMERICAN DATUM	30
	4.1 Coordinate Transformations	30
	4.2 Results	31
5	CONCLUSIONS	95
υ.		00
Re	ferences	36

• ····· •

\$22

n e 📷 sterense

LIST OF TABLES

Page

-

1	Time Periods of GEOS I Passes Used in the Short-Arc Adjustment	9
2	Distribution of SECOR Events	16
3	General Information on the Geometric Adjustments	19
4	Coordinates of the North American GEOS I Tracking Stations from the Geometric Adjustment	20
5	Coordinates of the North American GEOS I Optical Tracking Stations from the Short-Arc Orbital Mode Adjustment	26
6	Datum Transformation Parameters: NA-2 - NAD	32
7	Datum Transformation Parameters: NA-3 - NAD	33
8	Datum Transformation Parameters: NA-4 - NAD	34

1. INTRODUCTION

During the lifetime of the GEOS I satellite a large number of optical and electronic observations were made from stations located on the North American Datum (NAD). The NAD coordinates of most of these stations have been determined through precise geodetic ground ties to the first-order triangulation network. In this report an attempt is made to determine the coordinates of these stations from the available satellite observations and possible distortions present in the North American Datum. The coordinates were determined both from simultaneous observations (geometric mode) and from observations distributed along the orbital path (short-arc mode).

The observation stations involved are shown in Fig. 1. All coordinate computations (and results) are relative to the NAD coordinates (and variances) of Columbia, Missouri, the station nearest to the origin of the NAD: Meades Ranch, Kansas. On the other hand, the parameters, defining the distortions of the NAD with respect to the satellite determined system, refer to Meades Ranch.

2. OBSERVATIONS

The observations utilized in the calculations were taken by the United States Air Force using the PC-1000 cameras (15 stations), by NASA/Goddard Space Flight Center using mostly MOTS 40 cameras (15 stations), and by the U.S. Army TopographicCommand(TOPOCOM)—sequential collation of range (SECOR) ranging system (4 stations). The optical observations were processed as described in [1, pp. 82-95, 129-137] and deposited in the National Space Science Data Center (NSSDC) by the agencies responsible for data reduction (Aeronautical Chart and Information Center and Goddard Space FlightCenter).



Fig. 1

The SECOR data was directly obtained from U.S. Army TOPOCOM, where it was processed as given in [2, pp. 18-37] and [3].

2.1 Data Processing

The optical data (approximately 7000 observations) as received from the NSSDC required corrections as described below:

(1) The time given for each PC-1000 observation was in the system of the satellite clock; corrections to UTC were interpolated from graphs furnished by the Applied Physics Laboratory, Johns Hopkins University.

(2) The MOTS data was given in the UTC system, but the last digit (tenths of milliseconds) was rounded off. It was necessary to examine every MOTS data card and correct for this roundoff.

(3) The time correction from UTC to UT1 was performed by a computer program using the second difference Bessel formula to interpolate from tables provided by the U.S. Naval Observatory. Since the tables were for the differences UT2 - UTC and UT2 - UT1, the UT1 time was calculated by the formula:

UT1 = UTC + (UT2 - UTC) - (UT2 - UT1)

(4) Correction for parallactic refraction had to be applied to all PC-1000 and MOTS observations. It was computed using the formula described in [4, p. 93]. Since this formula requires the zenith distance and range to the satellite, it was necessary to write two computer programs: The first program separated all observations into simultaneous events, computed the Cartesian coordinates of the satellite as described in [5, pp. 17-18], and computed the range of the satellite from each observing station. The information on the data card and the range and the Local Apparent Sidereal Time(LAST) were written onto a magnetic tape. Another program was written that would read the tape, compute the parallactic refraction, and apply the corrections. A standard temperature of 10°C and a standard pressure of 760 mm Hg were used in the computation of the parallactic refraction. (5) In early 1969 the U.S. Naval Observatory delivered revised values of A.1 - UT1 for the period January 1, 1956 to January 22, 1969. These values were given for each day, and they were punched on data cards. Also on these cards were the coordinates of the instantaneous pole with respect to the Conventional International Origin (CIO), and the value A.1 - UTC. In order to be able to use the revised values of UT1, it was necessary to use the time correction program mentioned in (3) above in the reverse to arrive at UTC, from which the revised UT1 was calculated by the formula:

UT1 = UTC + (A.1 - UTC) - (A.1 - UT1)

As before, a second difference Bessel formula was used to interpolate from the tables.

The SECOR data was used as received since it was previously corrected and screened in [3].

2.2 Data Screening and Rejection

The principle tool used for screening the optical data was the individual event adjustment. The observations are grouped by event (i.e., individual flash) and an adjustment is performed for the three components of the satellite position. The a posteriori variance of the observation of unit weight is computed and compared to a test value. If the computed variance is greater than the test value, the entire event (flash) is deleted from the data sample. A detailed description of the equations used in this process is given in [6, p. 57]. The purpose of the individual event adjustment is to detect blunders in the observational data, since these will generally cause large residuals and consequently a large a posteriori unit variance. On the other hand, the residuals and a posteriori unit variance also include some contribution from the errors in the station positions, which are held fixed during the event adjustment. Thus the test is efficacious only if the station positions are fairly well known. In the case of the MOTS and PC-1000 observations, the station positions were

considered to be quite well known a priori. We expected the approximate station coordinates to be sufficiently accurate that their errors would seldom contribute more than a second of arc to any of the residuals in the individual event adjustments.

Altogether about 5000 MOTS and 2000 PC-1000 observations were investigated. We expected to find that the data had been thoroughly screened before it was deposited in the Data Center, so that it would not be necessary for us to delete any observations at all. However, the individual event adjustments showed that the unit variance was unacceptably large in a sizable number of cases. The values of the a posteriori unit variance fell over a wide range; only in some cases was this value large enough to indicate an obvious blunder, while in other cases this value indicated that the data probably contained a blunder of small magnitude. We were able to identify the actual observation containing the blunder in a few cases by examining the residuals of the individual event adjustment and in other cases by examining the residuals of the orbital mode adjustment, but in most cases the offending observation could not be identified and it was necessary to delete the whole event. We were not able to detect any correlation between bad observations or events and the tracking stations, so that we could not ascribe the existence of bad events to large errors in the coordinates of any station. On the other hand, we often found that all, or at least several, of the flashes of a sequence yielded poor event adjustments, which indicated the existence of an error in the plate reduction for at least one of the plates involved. Since we did not have access to the raw data and the plate reductions, we were not able to follow the possibility further.

The data suspected of containing blunders amounted to about 10% of the MOTS data and about 30% of the PC-1000 data. The PC-1000 data was the most troublesome, not only because of the large amount of suspected data but also because the value of the unit variance often fell into the "doubtful" range; the values of the a posteriori standard deviation of unit weight for the

individual event adjustments were fairly continuously spread from 0" to 30". We were willing to accept that an individual event could yield a standard deviation of as much as 6" or even 10" due to the normal sample fluctuation of accidental errors. However, it seemed that a value greater than this amount indicated the probable presence of a small blunder that would be identifiable with sufficient investigative effort. In the case of the MOTS data, the a posteriori standard deviations were usually either less than 6" or greater than 20", thus allowing a fairly clear separation of good and erroneous data.

Since we were not in a position to search for the cause of the apparent blunders in the data, we were not able to determine which events actually contained small blunders and which only appeared bad due to normal sample fluctuation. If we were to consider the small blunders to be part of the population of accidental errors, the population standard deviation of the data would be so large as to render it practically useless for geodetic purposes. This meant that it was necessary for us to accept, a priori, some value for the standard deviation of the data and to rely on statistical methods to detect and delete suspect data.

Based on previous experience, we decided to ignore the standard deviations of the observations given on the data cards, since these were completely unrealistic, and to accept a value of 2".0 as the standard deviation of all optical observations, both MOTS and PC-1000. This value was used as the standard deviation for the declination and for the right ascension times the cosine of the declination. If this value is the true standard deviation of the accidental errors in the data, then the expected value of the a posteriori unit variance of an individual event adjustment is one. This statistic is distributed as chi-square so that we were able to construct a confidence interval in which it was expected to fall. Our final decision was to use a rejection criterion of 10, rejecting all events for which the unit variance was greater than this value. Since most of the event adjustments involved only two plates, and thus four observations and one degree of freedom, this rejection criterion corresponded in most cases to a probability level of .99843.

I.e., if the hypothesis that the true standard deviation is 2".0 is correct, then only 0.157% of the events are deleted by this test when they are actually good events. This is a small price to pay for the rejection of most of the small blunders.

When combined with the a priori standard deviation of 2".0, this rejection criterion corresponds to an observational standard deviation of 6".3 for the sample of observations contained in the event. Thus the screening criterion used for optical data may be phrased as the rejection of all events for which the observational standard deviation, estimated from the individual event adjustment with the starting coordinates held fixed, is greater than 6".3. As expected, this rejection criterion resulted in an overall unit variance of close to one, as seen in the results of the simultaneous adjustments of all nondeleted optical data (Section 3.1).

The SECOR range data had already been extensively screened during the processing described in [3]. Therefore it was not necessary to delete any range data. An a priori standard deviation of 1.7 m, obtained from [3], was used in forming normal equations from the range data.

2.3 Distribution of Observations

The number of simultaneous optical observations between the various stations and used in the adjustment is shown in Fig. 2. The station numbers along the borders of the matrix are the GOCC numbers described in [7]. The corresponding station names are given in Table 4. A number inside the matrix indicates the number of simultaneous events observed between the two stations appearing at the ends of the respective column and row intersecting at the number in question.

The time periods of optical passes used in the short-arc adjustment are listed in Table 1, and a matrix indicating the distribution of observations between the various stations and passes is shown in Fig. 3.

SECOR tracking of GEOS I was initiated on December 1, 1965, and terminated May 1, 1966. During this period the satellite was tracked more

 $\mathbf{7}$

										_						_						<u> </u>			······						
Sta- tion	7075	1032	3334	3902	1033	3400	3903	7039	3405	3407	3648	3404	3657	3406	7076	1021	3402	3401	3106	3861	7040	7043	7045	1042	7072	7036	1034	1030	7037	1022	
1022	16					വ	2	46	27		18	46	37	45	42	35	61	61	23	87	79	70	31	17	193	81	74	44	63		
7697	30		2	6		ი	9	21	വ		18	6	9	ß	6	26	22	S		22		20	29	70	16	52	93	63			
1030	31				ი		9					4	9			6	22	വ		9		20	97	27	5	86	101				
₽801	25		3	4	13	4	9	14			ഹ	4	10		6	8	20	28		23	വ	17	48	89	9	25					
9802	24		9	8		11		9	4		7		6	7	14	21	20	11		5		6	37	18	16						
2707		1						വ	9		13	3	15	25	26	12	11	30	19	36	15	20	9	32							
2401	48	က				8	3	3			5	17	6	7	4	28	47	17	6	14	17	45	22								ļ
9702	11		3	വ	6	11	9	വ							4	4						24									
£407		9					6		10	ວ		7	25		9	32	20	26	8	2	13					ſ					
0702									19	21	5	20	Ţ	18	10	12	S	11	58	1											
198E								7	ວ	13	24	26	16	22	14	80	36	24	10												
90TE								11	7	15	17	ဖ	വ	36	4	9	10	10													
10 ₽ 8								7		7	6	10	26		21	16	11														
3402			က	က				16	9		က	16	23	9	œ	13															4,
1201	20							9	17	1	5		22	11						ļ											ble
9202								10				4		21				ļ													Та
90 7 8								16	2	14																					OB
2652								3	7	1	10	2																			d fj
¥0¥8	Γ							ŀ	4		10																				oun
8498								9				1					[[[[ſ							bef
7 <u>4</u> 07									13					·																	ay
3405	Ţ							6												1											B
6807	14			L																											me
8068	<u> </u>		<u> </u>	 	Ļ	ļ										1											1				naı
3400		╞	<u>_</u>	2	 						1																				on
1033	_	<u> </u>			Į										1																ati
3902			<u> </u>										1			1						1							1		s
3334													1			1	1					1									
1032						L																	L					1		<u> </u>	of 1
Sta- tion	7075	1039	3334	3902	1033	3400	3903	7039	3405	3407	3648	3404	3657	3406	7076	1001	3402	3401	3106	3861	7040	7043	7045	1042	7079.	7036	1034	1030	7037	1022	

Fig. 2 Distribution of simultaneous MOTS and PC-1000 observations.

Table 1

Pass No.	Date	From	То
1	24 Nov 65	5 ^h 12 ^m	$5^{h}18^{m}$
2	24 Nov 65	$7\ 13$	7 19
3	25 Nov 65	5 17	5 23
4	26 Nov 65	5 18	5 24
6	27 Nov 65	5 17	5 23
7	14 Dec 65	2 22	2 29
8	15 Dec 65	0 24	0 31
9	18 Dec 65	0 34	0 40
10	18 Dec 65	$2 \ 42$	2 48
12	21 Dec 65	9 28	934
13	3 Jan 66	$6\ 15$	6 20
14	3 Jan 66	8 17	8 22
15	4 Jan 66	620	$6\ 25$
151	12 Jan 66	4 49	4 54
152	13 Jan 66	4 52	4 58
16	14 Jan 66	4 52	5 00
16-A	14 Jan 66	5 00	5 04
17	14 Jan 66	648	6 56
18	15 Jan 66	4 58	5 03
181	16 Jan 66	3 01	3 06
19	17 Jan 66	3 05	3 12
20	17 Jan 66	5 07	5 13
201	18 Jan 66	3 10	3 17
202	19 Jan 66	3 14	3 23
22	19 Jan 66	5 12	5 17
23	22 Jan 66	3 19	3 24
24	24 Jan 66	3 29	3 36
26	28 Jan 66	1 43	1 49
26-A	28 Jan 66	1 49	1 55
261	29 Jan 66	1 55	2 01
262	3 Feb 66	0 14	0 21
263	5 Feb 66	0 16	0 22
264	6 Feb 66	0 25	0 29
265	26 Feb 66	8 52	8 58
266	27 Feb 66	9 00	9 07
		k	1

Time Periods of GEOS I Passes Used in the Short-Arc Adjustment

Note: All times given are UT.

Pass No.	Date	From	То
28	9 Mar 66	$7^{\text{h}} 37^{\text{m}}$	$7^{h} 44^{m}$
29	9 Mar 66	9 41	9 46
30	12 Mar 66	7 44	7 49
33	14 Mar 66	7 56	8 06
35	16 Mar 66	5 57	6 02
35-A	16 Mar 66	6 02	6 09
36	16 Mar 66	8 03	8 07
36-A	16 Mar 66	8 07	8 14
39	18 Mar 66	6 08	6 17
40	19 Mar 66	$6\ 13$	6 1 9
40-A	19 Mar 66	6 19	$6\ 25$
42	21 Mar 66	4 12	4 21
43	21 Mar 66	$6\ 21$	6 27
44	22 Mar 66	4 18	4 25
45	22 Mar 66	6 29	6 35
46	24 Mar 66	6 39	647
49	27 Mar 66	$4 \ 48$	4 53
50	27 Mar 66	6 53	659
51	28 Mar 66	4 51	4 57
52	28 Mar 66	6 57	7 03
53	29 Mar 66	4 50	4 56
54	29 Mar 66	7 00	7 06
55	30 Mar 66	253	2 59
56	31 Mar 66	2 56	3 03
57	17 Apr 66	838	8 44
58	18 Apr 66	8 37	8 43
581	22 Apr 66	6 56	7 02
59	24 Apr 66	6 58	7 06
60	26 Apr 66	7 05	7 12
61	27 Apr 66	7 15	7 24
70	14 Jan 66	0 39	049
71	6 Apr 66	11 47	11 55
72	8 Apr 66	9 53	10 01
73	9 Apr 66	958	10 05
74	10 Apr 66	10 02	10 09
75	13 Apr 66	10 15	10 20
76	15 Apr 66	10 18	10 24

Table 1 (continued)

<u> </u>	•		
Pass No.	Date	From	То
77	10 May 66	$\begin{array}{cccc} 4 & 01 \\ 2 & 01 \\ 4 & 00 \\ 4 & 11 \\ 2 & 11 \\ 2 & 24 \\ 2 & 22 \\ 2 & 32 \\ \end{array}$	4 07
78	11 May 66		2 07
79	11 May 66		4 06
80	13 May 66		4 18
81	15 May 66		2 20
82	15 May 66		2 31
83	16 May 66		2 28
83-A	16 May 66		2 38
84	11 Jul 66	$5 06 \\ 5 15 \\ 7 16 \\ 3 42 \\ 3 54 \\ 4 08$	5 11
85	11 Jul 66		5 20
86	11 Jul 66		7 21
88	20 Jul 66		3 48
89	22 Jul 66		4 00
90	25 Jul 66		4 14

Table 1 (continued)

		,		7																			· · ·			
1022	6	10	5	13	12	∞	10	11		11	12	9		12	~	4	3		9		11	9				
7637										9	2	10	4			H	3		11					S	2	
1030									11							9		5	5			5			2	13
103¢												4			S						2			S	13	11
9802		6		5	5														11							
2707				9	ى ا	8			ß	9					3				9			9			1	
240I	9																					ß				
G ₽ 07																		2				2			9	2
8407	7	2						4																		
0702			П					13		6							2				7					
198 5										ß					5	3	3			4	4	9	14	12		
3709													6	ß			9			7						
10 1 8														5	9						2		9	9		
3402														2							4		7			
1201	2		4						9				2					÷	3							
9404																										
907€											9		9				9									
2652										6				2					1				6			9
6798										_					13	က	3		1	4	4			7		
₽ 40 4	Γ									4		ນ														
8498										S	9													ß		
TL01										12									9			9		4		
7 <u>4</u> 07																					5		2	2		
3405										4						3	3			5						
680L							10				12		9								വ		-			
₽ 202										വ									9			9				
8068																										
1033																		2								
1032									ŀ																	
9202																										
a-	T	Γ	F	Γ				Γ	-		T						~	l			Γ		Γ			
St		2	က	4	9	6	œ	6	0	[2]	3	14	5	151	152	16	1-91	17	18	181	61	20	201	202	22	23
V Å						1										Γ				Ľ	Ľ		<u> </u>	[]		.4

Note: Station names may be found from Table 4; pass descriptions from Table 1

-

•

Number of observations used in the short-arc adjustment by pass and station. Fig. 3

·	-77	~														7								<u></u>	— T	n
2201		2	4	10			9	ວ	1	12	13	13	14		10	6	4	6	14	11	10	18	12	11	11	2
7697	,]]	13	10	2										12						4	10					Ŀ-
1030		4										13		7			11	3							4	
₽801	·	7	6				·																9		1	-
9807	·]]		4	3	1									7					7					9	4	
2707	, [[6	ว	4	6			7		10	9	4	വ						2	9	
2401			3										1						2			13	12			
G₽07	·]]													13			11	6		4	3					2
8407										12	7				2	3			7	4	10		9			
0702				7		13	6			3	9															
1988	;]]	9		6			7																	7		
9018	;][3				2																		
10 7 8	;																					5	6	7	വ	
20 1 8	;		5	6							6				5											
1201	[]	3	6								6															
9202	-												7			6				7		5		14		
90 7 8	;]]				7		6													5		9		4		
7895	;		3	3	7			7	4	6	5															
6798	;		2	9		7	13	7	10	6																
₽ 0 ₽8	;]]			9																						
8798	;	6		6			6	9																		
T202								2																		
20 1 ∕8	;				7	ວ		7																		
9078	;]				13	13					7															
6802			1	3										5										7		
₹£02	2						•																			
8068	;						,															7				
8801	[]																									
2201	[]																				9					
9202	- [
Sta- tion	Fass /	24	26	26-A	261	262	263	264	265	266	28	29	30	33	35	35-A	36	36-A	39	40	40-A	42	43	44	45	46

weight a



_	7.		-	-	_					_		-	_											
220 I	14							4		9	5	2	2	12								14		\square
7037		9	14	12	5				 		5				9			5	2	-	┢──	L		
1030				9	14	5	\square						S	6		9			5	2	9	\vdash	-	14
1034	14	12	14		14	13				13		14	12		9		[12		<u> </u>		F	H
9802					5			2					2									14		2
2707													2								Γ	 	\square	
1045	14	ຄ	2	9			ഹ	4	14	13		14											2	13
G₽07		က		4	14	9								9			2	H	5					\square
8 7 07					5		S		14															\square
0702								4						6										
198 8											14													Π
90TE							4	_ · ·																\square
3401							4						9											
3402									7	ი	13													
1201							1																വ	5
9707								9						5										\square
907₽8							1				6													\square
3657																								
6 7 98																								
3404									7			4		ວ										
8 ₽ 98																								
T202																								
20₽8																								
3402																								
6E07																								
₽202																								
8068																								
1033																14	2	2	∽	വ	10			
1032															2									
9707 B707									·													S	14	14
Sta- tion Pass	49	50	51	52	53	54	55	56	57	58	581	59	60	61	70	71	72	73	74	75	76	77	78	79



14

÷.,

2201	0	5	1-	3	2		İ	[2		
7037	-		┢──		┝─	2	1	-	4	4	4
1030	14	<u> </u>		[\vdash	┢──	┝─	5	<u>├</u>	<u> </u>	2
₽£01	l -	[\vdash	<u> </u>	1	5	2		13
9804		<u> </u>	<u> </u>	\vdash	 	14			14	5	
27072			1	┢╴						<u>}</u>	
2401						\square		12	 	14	7
G₽07	13										5
8407											
070L			14	5	14	5					
1985											
90TE											
10₽8								 			
3402	\square										
1021				5				11	14		
9202	4		9		14	14					
90 7 8											
7855											
6 798	\square										
¥0¥8			·								
8 7 98											
T202											
2 4 02											
34 02											
6807						9	14		_		
₹ 202											
8068											
1033											
1032											
9202	14	20		14		Ч	14	7	2	14	13
Pass	80	81	82	83	83-A	84	85	86	88	89	90

Fig. 3 (continued)

than 230 passes. Data from 47 of these were selected at random at the AMS as part of a 1966 study. The original 20 events per second had been edited and reduced in number to one event (four ranges) per forty seconds. Table 2 shows the distribution of the 480 events along the various orbits. Each event was observed from the same four tracking sites at Homestead AFB, Florida; Herndon, Virginia; Stoneville, Mississippi; and Hunter AFB, Georgia.

Orbit	Date	No. of Events	Orbit	Date	No. of Events
1657	3-24-66	10	1945	4-18-66	13
1682	3-27-66	3	1946	4-18-66	3
1693	3-28-66	3	1958	4-19-66	8
1704	3-29-66	8	1982	4-21-66	6
1728	3-31-66	11	1993	4-22-66	15
1740	4-01-66	10	1994	4-22-66	- 5
1752	4-02-66	4	2004	4-23-66	7
1753	4-02-66	8	2005	4-23-66	8
175 5	4-02-66	10	2006	4-23-66	14
1763	4-03-66	8	2017	4-24-66	10
1871	4-12-66	4	2018	4-24-66	4
1874	4-12-66	4	2028	4-25-66	15
1875	4-12-66	7	2029	4-25-66	13
1883	4-13-66	11	2040	4-26-66	20
1886	4-13-66	12	2041	4-26-66	14
1887	4-13-66	8	2052	4-27-66	9
1898	4-14-66	18	2053	4-27-66	9
1899	4-14-66	9	2064	4-28-66	14
1907	4-15-66	16	2065	4-28-66	14
1910	4-15-66	10	2076	4-29-66	16
1911	4-15-66	12	2077	4-29-66	10
1919	4-16-66	14	2088	4-30-66	17
1922	4-16-66	8	2100	5-01-66	15
1934	4-17-66	13		ł	
1					

Table 2

Distribution	of	SECOR	Events
--------------	----	-------	--------

3. NETWORK ADJUSTMENT

3.1 Geometric Adjustment

The network adjustment in the geometric (simultaneous) mode was carried out as described in [17], or in more detail in [5], [6], and [8], with minor modifications. Four adjustments (NA-1, NA-2, NA-3, and NA-4) were performed with characteristics as follows:

- NA-1 Only MOTS and PC-1000 data was used. The coordinates of Columbia, Missouri (7037), were given a weight of 10 (which kept the station coordinates effectively fixed). The scale was determined by imposing a chord constraint between Homestead, Florida (3861) and Greenbelt, Maryland (7043). These two stations were on the precise traverse of the U.S. Coast and and Geodetic Survey (USCGS). This chord distance is 1,531,562.9 m and was constrained to ± 2 m (1: 750,000), as estimated by the USCGS.
- NA-2 Same as NA-1 but the coordinates of Columbia, Missouri, were given a weight of 0.11 (which corresponds to the standard deviation computed by Simmons' formula [18]).
- NA-3 The SECOR data was included along with the MOTS and PC-1000 data. The coordinates of Columbia, Missouri, were given a weight of 0.11. There was no chord constraint; the scale was determined from the SECOR ranges.
- NA-4 Same as NA-3 but the chord distance, (3861) (7043), was constrained in the same way as in the NA-1.

÷

-16

.

...

	NA-1	NA-2	NA-3	NA-4
No. of PC-1000 stations	15	15	15	15
No. of MOTS stations	15	15	15	15
No. of SECOR stations	1	I	4	4
o (a priori)	2"	2,1	optical:2"0 range:1.7 m	optical:2''0 range:1.7 m
Rejection criteria	6.13	6.13	optical:6''3 range: none	optical:6''3 range: none
Weight assigned to coordinates of Columbia, Mo.	10	0,11	0.11	0.11
Chord constraint between Homestead and Greenbelt (1, 531, 562. 9 m)	1:750,000	1:750,000	l	1:750,000
Relative positions of the 4 SECOR stations and the 4 collocated PC-1000 stations constrained by adding 999 to the diagonal elements of the corresponding 3 × 3 matrices	ł	1	×	X
No. of known and unknown ground stations	30	30	34	34
No. of unknown ground stations	29	29	33	°°
No. of obs. minus 3 times No. of events	4306	4306	5281	5281
No. of spatial chord equations	r-1	₩	0	1
No. of unknowns in normal equations	87	87	66	66
No. of degrees of freedom	4220	4220	5182	5183
Quadratic sum of all the residuals (VPV)	3951.4	3951.4	7818.3	7825.8
Variance of unit weight	0.9	0.9	1.5	1.5
Standard deviation of unit weight	1.0	1.0	1.2	1.2

Table 3

Coordinates of the North American GEOS I Tracking Stations from the Geometric Adjustment

Table 4

×

e

æ

80

w

р	7.0 7.9 6.8	87.4 123.7 48.0	7.1 10.3 8.0	40.4 44.0 14.8	19.2 93.0 50.9	20.0 15.1 10.4	9.4 6.3	11.0 7.3 7.1
NA-4	- 1.1 2.1 10.7	-89.2 -20.6 -41.3	- 1.8 - 1.5 - 2.9	44.7 12.0 -36.6	12.3 3.6 -20.5	-16.8 -25.3 12.5	- 4.7 4.4 -13.7	$ \begin{array}{c} 11.3\\ 24.9\\ -2.0\end{array} $
ъ	8.1 8.3 7.7	88.5 124.1 48.2	8.9 10.3 9.0	40.6 44.0 14.9	21.5 94.3 51.6	20.6 15.1 10.5	11.0 5.7 7.5	. 15.8 . 7.3 7.4
NA-3	$\begin{array}{rrr} - 12.9 \\ - 5.4 \\ 0.7 \end{array}$	-130.4 - 50.4 - 52.2	- 17.2 0.0 8.9	56.8 6.7 - 40.3	40.0 - 42.5 - 45.6	- 2.5 - 26.9 10.3	- 21.0 10.4 - 1.6	- 21.8 24.9 3.4
ь	5.6 6.4 5.8	68.8 97.4 37.9	16.1 13.3 10.8	$\begin{array}{c} 31.9\\ 34.7\\ 34.7\\ 11.8\end{array}$	15.3 73.3 40.2	15.8 12.0 8.5	$11.9 \\ 14.2 \\ 10.3$	9.0 6.1 6.2
NA-2	0.7 9.6 8.6	-81.8 -10.7 -43.8	10.3 -13.0 -38.9	39.2 15.3 -40.2	6.3 19.3 -20.1	-21.5 -21.1 7.0	- 7.3 113.7 - 3.1	18.9 31.9 - 8.5
δ	4.8 5.8 5.0	68.8 97.3 37.8	$15.8 \\ 13.0 \\ 10.4$	31.7 34.6 11.5	15.0 73.3 40.0	15.5 11.6 8.0	$\frac{11.6}{13.9}$ 9.9	8.5 5.4 5.4
NA-1	0.7 9.6 8.6	-81.8 -10.7 -43.8	10.3 -13.0 -38.9	39.2 15.3 -40.2	6.3 19.3 -20.1	-21.5 -21.1 7.0	- 7.3 113.7 - 3.1	18.9 31.9 - 8.5
σ	6.0 5.0 4.9		4.1 3.1 3.7	2.9 2.4 2.5	10.7 11.0 7.8	2.7 2.3 2.4	6.4 5.1 5.6	8.8 7.2 8.3
NAD	692646.1 -4347225.8 4600298.3	2602802.5 -3419301.2 4697477.3	<pre>- 84957.5 -5328100.8 3493285.2</pre>	-1234668.8 -4651355.3 4174612.3	-2299238.0 -1445840.4 5751629.0	-1275173.6 -4798165.6 3994037.6	1089023.7 -4843194.9 3991564.7	2308230.2 -4873765.5 3394389.0
	XXZ	XYZ	XYZ	XXX	X X X	XYZ	XYZ	XYZ
Name	Sudbury, Ontario MOTS 40	St. Johns, Newfoundland MOTS 40	Greenville, Miss. PC-1000	Cheyenne, Wyo. PC-1000	College, Alaska MOTS 40	Colorado Springs, Colo. PC-1000	Herndon, Va. PC-1000	Bermuda Island MOTS 40
GOCC #	7075	1032	3334	3902	1033	3400	3903	7039

all units are in meters

20

×

-

w.

•

.....

w.

Table 4 (continued)

		192 F.							
ъ	9.9 7.8 9.4	14.4 9.2 14.9	6.6 4.0	7.4 7.7 9.4	7.2 7.0 5.5	10.5 7.6 12.4	8.7 9.0 9.9	7.1 6.1 5.4	6.1 5.7 6.0
NA-4	-12.3 23.9 -17.6	-15.3 90.6 -10.1	0.1 5.5 3.8	-21.4 46.1 6.7	-10.4 14.0 8.9	- 9.3 20.5 26.4	$\begin{array}{c} - & 0.1 \\ 12.8 \\ 20.6 \end{array}$	-10.3 14.6 4.9	- 1.1 15.9 6.3
ь	13.8 8.4 11.5	20.4 9.6 19.1	8.4 4.7 6.1	8.3 9.3 12.7	9.6 7.1 5.6	15.2 8.7 16.7	$11.3 \\ 10.1 \\ 12.9 $	9.3 6.1 5.4	6.4 6.3 6.5
NA-3	-40.0 32.9 2.0	-57.1 98.3 24.3	-14.9 12.7 15.9	-32.4 61.1 31.5	-28.7 11.8 6.1	-41.2 32.5 58.6	-20.8 25.9 44.3	-27.8 13.8 3.1	- 5.9 23.5 13.7
α	8.1 6.5 8.0	$11.7 \\ 7.6 \\ 12.3 $	5.9 5.7 6.0	5.9 6.6 8.2	5.9 6.0 4.9	8.7 6.5 10.5	7.1 7.5 8.5	5.8 5.2 8.8	4.9 5.0 5.4
NA-2	- 6.2 27.8 -28.0	- 5.3 94.7 -25.1	2.8 17.5 - 1.2	-20.0 48.8 - 5.1	- 7.3 20.8 4.3	-1.0 24.5 11.8	4.0 15.4 9.1	- 7.3 20.9 · 0.0	- 1.3 20.2 - 1.5
ь	7.6 5.8 7.4	$11.4 \\ 7.1 \\ 12.0$	5.1 4.9 5.3	5.1 5.9 7.6	5.2 5.2 4.0	8.2 5.8 10.1	6.5 6.9 8.0	5.0 4.4 3.9	4.0 4.1 4.5
NA-1	- 6.2 27.8 -28.0	- 5.3 94.7 -25.1	2.8 17.5 - 1.2	-20.0 48.8 - 5.1	- 7.3 20.8 4.3	- 1.0 24.5 11.8	4.0 15.4 9.1	- 7.3 20.9 0.0	- 1.3 20.2 - 1.5
ъ	9.0 6.6	11.4 9.2 12.1	6.3 4.6 5.7	8.5 5.4 8.2	6.6 5.3 5.7	10.7 7.8 11.0	9.1 6.1 8.9	6.5 5.1 5.6	5.2 3.8 4.7
NAD	$\begin{array}{c} 1919530.5\\ -5621245.2\\ 2315617.1 \end{array}$	2979925.0 -5513746.9 1180994.8	832594.6 -5349690.7 3360414.7	642541.2 -6054109.5 1895518.2	1186826.8 -4785340.8 4032705.0	2251837.6 -5817069.3 1327016.0	1384188.1 -5905826.8 1966367.6	1118061.3 -4876472.4 3942793.7	167291.0 -5482121.9 3244863.3
	XXX	N N N	XYZ	XYZ	XYZ	X X X	XXX	XXZ	XXX
Name	Grand Turk PC-1000	Trinidad PC-1000	Hunter AFB, Ga PC-1000	Swan Island PC-1000	Aberdeen, Md. PC-1000	Curacao PC-1000	Jamaica, B. W. I. MOTS 40	Blossom Point, Md MOTS 40	Semmes, Ala. PC-1000
GOCC#	3405	3407	3648	3404	3657	3406	7076	1021	3402

Table 4 (continued)

đ

.

C #	Name		NAD	ь	NA-1	ь	NA-2	ь	NA-3	ъ	NA-4	σ
	L. G. Hanscom Field, Mass. PC-1000	XYN	$\begin{array}{c} 1513184.2 \\ -4463730.2 \\ 4282975.7 \end{array}$	7.4 6.2 6.3	-14.5 33.1 3.4	5.9 5.9 4.1	-14.5 33.1 3.4	6.6 6.6 5.0	-41.9 18.1 0.9	11.2 8.1 6.0	-19.4 24.1 7.1	8.0 7.8 5.6
	Antigua Island PC-1000	X X X	2881872.3 -5372329.3 1868346.8	10.6 8.5 11.1	0.2 29.4 19.7	$\begin{array}{c} 10.1\\ 5.1\\ 7.9\end{array}$	0.2 29.4 19.7	10.5 5.8 8.5	-50.0 29.8 57.5	18.9 7.1 13.1	- 9.5 23.8 32.2	12.7 6.8 9.8
	Homestead AFB, Fla. PC-1000	XXX	961792.9 -5679312.7 2729707.6	7.4 5.1 7.0	8.6 22.2 3.2	4.6 3.9 4.1	8.6 22.2 3.2	5.5 4.9 5.0	$\begin{array}{c} - & 6.9 \\ 30.4 \\ 23.9 \end{array}$	8.2 6.4 5.9	7.4 19.2 12.1	6.5 5.1 4.3
0	San Juan, P.R. MOTS 40 *	XXX	2465090.5 -5535082.5 1985346.2	$\begin{bmatrix} 10.1\\7.7\\10.3\end{bmatrix}$	- 2.6 15.5 - 4.1	8.7 5.1 7.1	- 2.6 15.5 - 4.1	9.2 5.9 7.7	-45.5 19.0 31.4	16.4 7.4 12.1	-10.6 11.0 7.7	11.1 6.8 8.8
 ന	GSFC, Greenbelt, Md. PTH-100	XYZ	1130742.6 -4831487.8 3993952.9	6.5 5.2 5.6	- 2.4 36.1 2.2	4.9 4.6	- 2.4 36.1 2.2	5.7 5.4 5.1	-21.8 26.3 4.9	9.4 9.8 9.8	- 3.6 29.7 11.0	7.0 6.4 5.4
ດ	Denver, Colo. MOTS 40	XYZ	-1240449.5 -4760379.7 4048804.6	2.2 2.4 2.4	12.1 1.4 7.1	5.2 4.2 4.2	12.1 1.4 7.1	6.0 5.1 5.1	28.9 - 7.3 7.8	8.8 6.2 6.0	15.2 - 4.9 10.6	7.5 6.2 5.9
2	Rosman, N.C. MOTS 40	XYZ	647539.6 -5178083.5 3656534.4	5.5 4.2 9	- 9.8 14.7 - 1.6	3.8 3.3 3.7	- 9.8 14.7 - 1.6	4.8 4.4 4.7	-22.7 12.6 6.1	7.1 5.1 5.2	-11.6 9.3 4.1	5.9 5.2
2	Jupiter, Fla. MOTS 40	XXX	976297.2 -5601549.2 2880071.8	7.2 5.0 6.7	- 0.2 13.1 - 2.1	4.6 4.1 4.5	- 0.2 13.1 - 2.1	5.4 5.1	-18.0 18.4 18.2	8.5 6.5 7.1	- 2.7 9.0 6.2	6.6 5.7 5.8
9	Edinburg, Tex. MOTS 40	XXX	- 828463.9 -5657604.0 2816639.7	5.0 5.0 0	- 2.7 - 3.3 4.6	3.9 5.0	- 2.7 - 3.3 4.6	55.1 5.7	$12.6 \\ 4.2 \\ 25.6 \\ 25.6 \\$	6.6 6.8 8.1	4.8 - 5.7 12.1	6.0 5.9 6.6

22

-

-

-

-

.

•

-

-

~

Table 4 (continued)

	1							
ь	5.3 6.2 5.6	10.6 5.9 5.8	3.7 3.5	5.9 5.1 5.4	6.5 5.1 4.3	9.4 6.3	7.1 10.3 8.0	6.6 4. 4.4
NA-4	4.0 - 5.8 2.7.	5,5 0,6 0,3	0.7 - 3.6 1.9	0,0 6,6 9,6	7.4 19.2 12.1	- 4,7 4,4 -13,7	1 1 2 8 7 1 2 8 7 1 1 1 8 7 1 1 1 1 8 7 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	0.1 5.5 3.8
ь	5.5 6.9 6.9	14.5 6.0 5.8	3.7 3.5	7.5 6.2 7.0	8.2 6.4 5.9	11. 0 5. 7 7. 5	8.9 10.3 9.0	8.4 4.7 6.1
NA-3	8.4 -15.0 - 9.0	34.0 - 3.2 2.5	0.6 - 3.3 0.8	-13.3 16.5 22.2	$\begin{array}{c} - & 6. \\ - & 6. \\ 30. \\ 23. \\ 9\end{array}$	-21.0 10.4 - 1.6	-17.2 0.0 8.9	-14.9 12.7 15.9
ъ	4.2 5.1 4.9	8.7 5.1 5.1	2.9 2.9 2.9	4.8 4.7 5.1				
NA-2	2.3 1.1	- 0.9 - 7.2 - 4.5	0.0	2.0 10.7 1.1				
ъ	3.0 4.2 4.0	8.2 4.0 4.2	0.3 0.3 0.3	3.9 3.6 4.2				
NA-1	2.3 1.1 1.3	- 0.9 - 7.1 - 4.5	0.00	2.0 10.7 1.1		-		
ь	4.3 3.7 3.5	5.2 5.2	3.0 2.5 2.1	7.3 5.1 6.8	7.4 5.1 7.0	6.4 5.1 5.6	4.1 3.1 3.7	6.3 4.6 5.7
NAD	- 521678.9 -4242198.1 4718543.6	-2357214.3 -4646475.7 3668134.6	 191260.6 -4967428.4 3983084.5 	807883.1 -5652136.5 2833327.2	963493.6 -5679877.4 2727946.6	1088883.5 -4843079.7 3991674.3	 84975.8 5328098.4 3493294.2 	832512.0 -5349730.3 3360369.8
	XYZ	XYZ	XYZ	XYZ	XYZ	XYZ	XYZ	XXX
Name	E.Grand Fork, Minn. MOTS 40	Mojave, Calif. MOTS 40	Columbia, Mo. MOTS 40	Ft. Myers, Fla. MOTS 40	Homestead, Fla. SECOR	Herndon, Va. SECOR	Stoneville, Miss. SECOR	Hunter AFB, Ga. SECOR
GOCC#	1034	1030	7037	1022	5861	5001	5333	5649

3.2 Short-Arc Orbital Mode Adjustment

In addition to the geometric solutions described in the previous section, one adjustment was performed in the short-arc mode using the program described in [9]. Only the optical tracking stations were involved in this adjustment since no timing information was available for the SECOR observations. The results of this adjustment are given in Table 5.

The orbital arcs used in the short-arc adjustment were limited to about 10^{m} . These arcs are too short to afford a strong determination of the scale of the network through the adopted value of the GM. Therefore, scale was furnished by constraining the spatial chord distance between Homestead, Florida, and Greenbelt, Maryland, as had been done in the geometric adjustments. This distance and its a priori uncertainty were computed again from the geodetic coordinates of these two stations on the Cape Canaveral datum (i.e., the USCGS high-precision traverse).

The geocentric coordinates of Columbia, Missouri were constrained in order to define the origin of the coordinate system. These geocentric coordinates together with their associated covariance matrix were taken from [10]:

> $X = -191290 \text{ m} \pm 3.8$ $Y = -4967274 \text{ m} \pm 4.1$ $Z = 3983255 \text{ m} \pm 4.1$

The differences between the NAD coordinates and the short-arc solution coordinates of Columbia were (NAD - short arc):

$$dx = 32.1 m$$

 $dy = -158.8 m$
 $dz = -171.3 m$

In order to be able to compare the short-arc solution coordinates to the NAD coordinates, these shifts were added to the short-arc solution. The resulting coordinate differences appear under the heading "Orbital" in Table 5. The uncertainty of these coordinates was obtained by quadratically removing the

uncertainties of the geocentric coordinates (3.8 m, 4.1 m, 4.1 m) of Columbia from the standard deviations of the short-arc solution, and quadratically adding the uncertainties of the NAD coordinates of Columbia (3.0 m, 2.5 m, 2.7 m).

The geometric mode adjustment that most nearly resembles the orbital mode adjustment in terms of data used and constraints applied is the one designated NA-2. The short-arc solution and the standard deviation between the two was computed by removing the variance of the coordinates of Columbia from the variances of the two solutions and adding the resulting variances. These also appear in Table 5. From the table it is evident that the agreement between the geometric adjustment and the short-arc adjustment is satisfactory at all stations, except at San Juan, Puerto Rico; St. Johns, Newfoundland; and College, Alaska. The blame should probably be placed on the insufficient amount of data available and/or on the poor geometry. Table 5

-

-

• 🖛

•

-

-

Coordinates of the North American GEOS I Optical Tracking Stations from the Short-Arc Orbital Mode Adjustment

GOCC#	Name		NAD	Orbital	ь	Orbital - NA-2	α
7075	Sudbury, Ontario MOTS 40	XXX	692 646.1 -4347 225.8 4600 298.3	5.5 13.7 14.0	6.1 6.1 5.4	4.8 5.4	7.1 8.2 6.9
1032	St. Johns, Newfoundland MOTS 40	XXX	2602 802.5 -3419 301.2 4697 477.3	170.4 621.9 -475.6	87.4 275.1 231.2	252.2 632.6 431.8	$\begin{array}{c} 111.1\\ 291.8\\ 234.2\end{array}$
1033	College, Alaska MOTS 40	XXZ	-2299 238.0 -1445 840.4 5751 629.0	94.1 820.0 -546.3	24.5 31.5 51.0	87.8 800.7 -526.2	28.6 79.7 64.7
3903	Herndon, Va. PC-1000	XYZ	1689 023.7 -4843 194.9 3991 564.7	- 13.8 94.5 13.8	13.8 16.1 11.6	- 6.5 - 19.2 16.9	17.7 21.2 15.0
7039	Bermuda MOTS 40	XYZ	2308 230.2 -4873 765.5 3394 389.0	16.9 31.7 - 3.4	11.7 6.1 6.3	- 2.0 - 0.2 5.1	14.1 7.9 8.0
3405	Grand Turk PC-1000	XYZ	1919 530.5 -5621 245.2 2315 617.1	- 30.8 9.5 7.4	10.9 8.0 11.1	- 24.6 - 18.3 - 20.6	12.9 9.7 13.1
3407	Trinidad PC-1000	XYZ	2979 925.0 -5513 746.9 1180 994.8	- 50.2 100.0 3.9	17.1 10.5 18.4	- 46.9 5.3 29.0	20.4 12.5 21.8

all units are in meters

Ŷ

Table 5 (continued)

8.0 7.6 8.5 $9.2 \\ 10.4 \\ 13.4$ 8.6 9.8 6.8 14.1 10.6 18.4 10.410.612.88.5 6.7 5.8 7.0 7.1 8.5 ь **Orbital - NA-2** - 6, 7 0, 0 8, 5 -10.0 -21.1 6.6 12.516.3 22.62.1 - 3.5 32.0 1.5 -21.7 2.19.8 7.1 - 0.1 1.7 6.5 6.2 7.6 6.96.24.97.5 5.5 5.0 11.8 7.6 8.5 6.1 9.0 15.6 8.8 8.3 10.3 11.8 ь -22.7 37.0 28.1 - 8.0 20.2 -10.0 -17.9 45.3 -17.3 9.4 6.6 Orbital 4.9 3.226.9 - 7.4 19.1 5°8 -17.1 - 1.8 31.7 642 541.21895 518.2 1186 826.8 2251 837.6 1118 061.3 -4876 472.4 167 291.0 $-5482\ 121.0$ 3244 863.3 832 594.6 -6054 109.5-4785 340.8 4032 705.0 -5817 069.3 1327 016.0 -5905 826.8 1966 367.6 -5349 690.7 3360 414.7 1384 188.1 3942 793.7 NAD X M N XXX X X N XYZ XYZ X M N XXX Blosson Point, Md. Name Jamaica, B.W.I. Hunter AFB, Ga. Aberdeen, Md. Semmes, Ala. Swan Island Curacao PC-1000 PC-1000 MOTS 40 **MOTS 40** PC-1000 PC-1000 PC-1000 GOCC# 364834043657 34067076 34021021

e)

Table 5 (continued)

-

Ь	10.2 11.0 7.0	18.6 12.3 16.7	7.7 6.6 7.0	14.8 12.2 12.2	8.0 7.6 7.0	7.7 6.2 6.5	6.6 6.1
Orbital - NA-2	-14.3	-27.3	-10, 8	-41.2	10.2	-14.9	7.7
	-27.3	- 2.9	6, 2	-25.2	10.3	8.8	6.9
	17.9	36.5	8, 2	40.3	8.1	0.5	-10.8
ь	8.9 9.5 6.2	$15.9 \\ 11.4 \\ 14.9 \\ 14.9 \\$	0.00 0.10 0.10	$\begin{array}{c} 12.4 \\ 6.5 \\ 10.2 \end{array}$	7.1 6.3 6.1	5.0 5.0 6.4	6.2 4.6 5.5
Orbital	-28.7	-27.1	12.2	-43.8	7.8	- 2.8	- 2.1
	5.8	26.5	11.9	- 9.7	46.4	10.2	21.6
	21.3	56.2	9.4	36.2	- 5.9	7.6	-12.4
NAD	1513 184.2	2881 872.3	961 792.9	2465 090.5	1130 742.6	-1240 449.5	647 539.6
	-4463 730.2	-5372 329.3	-5679 312.7	-5535 082.5	-4831 487.8	-4760 379.7	-5178 083.5
	4282 875.7	1868 346.8	2729 707.6	1985 346.2	3993 952.9	4048 804.6	3656 534.4
	X Y N	X X X	X X X	XXX	XYZ	XYZ	XXZ
Name	L. G. Hanscom Field, Mass.	Antigua Island	Homestead AFB, Fla.	San Juan, P.R.	GSFC, Greenbelt, Md.	Denver, Colo.	Rosman, N. C.
	PC-1000	PC-1000	PC-1000	MOTS 40	PTH-100	MOTS 40	MOTS 40
GOCC #	3401	3016	3861	7040	7043	7045	1042

Table 5 (continued)

GOCC #	Name	***	NAD	Orbital	σ	Orbital - NA-2	ь
7072	Jupiter, Fla. MOTS 40	XYZ	976 297.2 -5601 549.2 2880 071.8	-16.4 -11.7 -11.7	6, 5 5, 0 6, 4	-16.2 -24.8 - 9.6	7.3 6.2 7.5
7036	Edinburg, Tex. MOTS 40	XYN	 828 463.9 5657 604.0 2816 639.7 	- 6.4 -11.3 5.6	5.1 5.7 7.2	- 9,1 - 8,0 1,0	5.7 6.8 8.4
1034	E. Grand Forks, Minn. MOTS 40	XYN	- 521 678.9 -4242 198.1 4718 543.6	- 2.9 11.6 7.4	5.4 5.4	- 5.2 10.5 6.1	4.2 6.5 6.0
1030	Mohave, Calif. MOTS 40	XYN	-2357 214.3 -4646 475.7 3668 134.6	-35.6 15.1 -15.7	10.2 5.0 5.8	-34.7 8.0 -11.3	12.7 6.1 6.7
7037	Columbia, Mo. MOTS 40	XXX	 191 260.6 -4967 428.4 3983 084.5 	0.00.0	3.0 2.5	0.0	0.0
1022	Ft. Myers, Fla. MOTS 40	XYN	807 883.1 5652 136.5 2833 327.2	4.9 2.6 7.4	5.8 6.4 6.4	- 2.9 - 8.1 6.3	6.2 5.8 7.3
General Infor	rmation: No. of unknown st No. of observatio No. of orbital arc Degrees of freedo	atio ns m	ß		30 6247 86 5641		

The chord distance between Homestead, Fla., and Greenbelt, Md., as obtained from their Cape Canaveral Datum coordinates (USCGS high precision traverse) was constrained to one part in 750,000.

Standard deviation of the observation of unit weight

Degrees of freedom

1.0

4. IMPLICATIONS REGARDING THE NORTH AMERICAN DATUM

4.1 Coordinate Transformations

The general relationship between a right-handed coordinate system defined by a certain geodetic datum (geodetic system, e.g., NAD) and one which is defined by the origin in the geocenter, the Z axis in the direction of the CIO, and the X axis in the plane of the Greenwich Mean Astronomic Meridian as defined by the Bureau International de l'Heure (average terrestrial system) is as follows [11]:

where

X,Y,Z	are the coordinates of a point in the average terrestrial
¢	
	system

- x, y, z are the coordinates of the same point in the geodetic system
- M is the rotation matrix of three rotations $(\theta_x, \theta_y, \theta_z)$ to rotate the géodetic system parallel to the average terrestrial system
- x_0, y_0, z_0 are the geodetic coordinates of a point P which is kept fixed during the rotation
- dx_0, dy_0, dz_0 are the coordinates of the origin of the geodetic system in the average terrestrial system, after the former has been made parallel with respect to the latter

 ϵ is the scale factor

In practice three main systems have been proposed:

(1) Bursa [12] and Wolf [13] select the point P at the origin of the geodetic coordinate system (i.e., $x_0 = y_0 = z_0 = 0$) and rotate about the axes x, y, z.

(2) Molodensky [14] selects the point P at the origin of the geodetic datum (e.g., at Meades Ranch on the NAD) and rotates about axes parallel to x, y, z.

(3) Veis [15] selects the point P at the origin of the geodetic datum and rotates about axes pointing to the geodetic zenith (z), to the south (x), and to the east (y) in the geodetic horizon.

In our case, since we are not concerned with translations, (1) and (2) are equivalent, and the transformation parameters are restricted to three rotation angles (either in the Bursa/Molodensky or Veis systems) and to the scale factors (all referred to the origin at Meades Ranch). These are determined from the satellite-determined coordinates (X, Y, Z) and the NAD coordinates (x, y, z) of the tracking stations.

The rotation angles are defined as customary: In the right-handed coordinate systems they are positive for counterclockwise rotation as viewed looking toward the origin from the positive end of the rotation axis. For example, in the Veis system, when θ_x is positive the rotation is from the east to the west in the prime vertical plane; when θ_y is positive the rotation is from the rotation is from the north to the south in the meridian plane; and when θ_z is positive the rotation is from the east to the west in the horizon plane (in azimuth).

4.2 Results

In order to detect systematic differences between the satellite-determined station coordinates from the NA-2 solution and the NAD coordinates, transformation parameters (rotations and the scale) were computed from a least squares adjustment utilizing a developed form of the transformation equation above [16]. The stations were considered independent from each other and

only those were used for which it was possible to verify that the NAD coordinates were based on direct ground ties to the first-order triangulation net. Nineteen stations were used in three solutions:

- (1) 14 stations in the eastern half of the U.S.
- (2) 5 stations in the western half of the U.S.
- (3) 19 stations in both the eastern and western halves of the U.S.

The first two solutions were made to detect possible differences between the two halves since they were adjusted separately in the original NAD adjustment. The results are summarized in Table 6. It seems evident that the western data is insufficient to allow meaningful quantitative conclusions. However, it seems evident that significant distortions are present. The eastern parameters, on the other hand, indicate a need for a rotation in the order of one second in azimuth (to the east) and one in the order of two seconds in the prime vertical plane (to the west), together with a possible reduction in

		Eastern Half (14 stations)*	Western Half (5 stations)**	Combination (19 stations)
Veis	θ _z ('') θ _y ('') θ _x ('')	$\begin{array}{c} -1.2 \pm 0.4 \\ -0.2 \pm 0.5 \\ 2.0 \pm 0.6 \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{c} 0.4 \pm 0.9 \\ 0.2 \pm 1.2 \\ -1.4 \pm 1.2 \end{array}$	$-0.9 \pm 0.3 \\ -0.2 \pm 0.4 \\ 1.2 \pm 0.3$
Molo- densky	θ _z ('') θ _y (!') θ _x ('')	$\begin{array}{c} -2.4 \pm 0.5 \\ -0.3 \pm 0.5 \\ -0.3 \pm 0.5 \end{array}$	$1.4 \pm 1.1 \\ 0.5 \pm 1.1 \\ 0.3 \pm 1.2$	$\begin{array}{c} -1.5 \pm 0.3 \\ 0.0 \pm 0.3 \\ -0.2 \pm 0.4 \end{array}$
	€ (× 10 ^{−6})	-1.3 ± 2.1	0.0 ± 4.7	-1.8±1.6

Table 6

Datum Transformation Parameters: NA-2 - NAD

*Eastern stations: 1021, 1022, 1034, 1042, 3334, 3401, 3402, 3648, 3657, 3861, 3037, 7043, 7072, 7075

****Western stations:** 1030, 3400, 3902, 7036, 7045

scale in the order of 1×10^{-6} . Applying these transformation parameters to the NAD would make it conform better to the satellite data. It is likely, however, that these small systematic distortions do not arise from actual systematic errors in the observations but are due rather to errors in the data reduction and adjustment methods utilized in the original NAD adjustment.

Table 7 shows the transformation parameters computed from the NA-3 solution. The resulting rotations are of the same order of magnitude as before, but the scale reduction is about a factor of ten larger. The latter obviously is the influence of the scale enforced through the SECOR ranges which were put in with a standard deviation of 1.7 m, corresponding on the average to approximately 1:1,800,000. (The average range was 3000 km.)

		Eastern Half	Western Half	Combination
Veis	$ \begin{array}{l} \theta_z & ('') \\ \theta_y & ('') \\ \theta_x & ('') \end{array} $	$\begin{array}{c} - \ 1.1 \pm 0.5 \\ - \ 0.1 \pm 0.6 \\ 1.8 \pm 0.6 \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{c} 0.3 \pm 1.1 \\ 0.0 \pm 1.5 \\ -1.6 \pm 1.5 \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{c} - & 0.8 \pm 0.3 \\ - & 0.1 \pm 0.5 \\ & 1.0 \pm 0.3 \end{array}$
Molo- densky	$ \begin{array}{c} \theta_z & ('') \\ \theta_y & ('') \\ \theta_x & ('') \end{array} $	$\begin{array}{c} - \ 2.1 \pm 0.6 \\ - \ 0.3 \pm 0.5 \\ - \ 0.2 \pm 0.6 \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{c} 1.4 \pm 1.3 \\ 0.8 \pm 1.3 \\ 0.1 \pm 1.4 \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{c} - \ 1.3 \pm 0.4 \\ 0.0 \pm 0.3 \\ - \ 0.1 \pm 0.5 \end{array}$
	ε (×10 ⁻⁶)	-17.1 ± 2.5	-17.0 ± 5.9	-17.4 ± 2.0

Table 7Datum Transformation Parameters:NA-3 - NAD

33

Table 8 shows the transformation parameters from the NA-4 solution. The rotations are again of the same magnitude. The overriding effect of the chord constraint over SECOR is evident from the $\sim 1:4$ ratio of the ϵ 's taken from the NA-3 and NA-4 solutions.

Table 8

		Eastern Half	Western Half	Combination
Veis	θ _z ('') θ _y ('') θ _x ('')	$\begin{array}{c} -1.2 \pm 0.5 \\ -0.2 \pm 0.5 \\ 1.5 \pm 0.6 \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{c} 0.3 \pm 1.0 \\ 0.1 \pm 1.4 \\ -1.4 \pm 1.4 \end{array}$	$\begin{array}{c} -0.9 \pm 0.3 \\ -0.1 \pm 0.5 \\ 1.0 \pm 0.3 \end{array}$
Molo- densky	$ \begin{array}{l} \theta_z ('') \\ \theta_y ('') \\ \theta_x ('') \end{array} $	$\begin{array}{c} -1.9 \pm 0.6 \\ 0.0 \pm 0.5 \\ -0.2 \pm 0.5 \end{array}$	$1.3 \pm 1.3 \\ 0.7 \pm 1.3 \\ 0.2 \pm 1.4$	$\begin{array}{c} -1.3 \pm 0.3 \\ 0.1 \pm 0.3 \\ -0.1 \pm 0.5 \end{array}$
	ε (× 10 ⁻⁶)	-4.1 ± 2.3	-2.9 ± 5.3	-4.4 ± 1.7

Datum Transformation Parameters: NA-4 - NAD

5. CONCLUSIONS

Adopting the NA-4 geometric solutions as a standard (since it is based on most of the available data), it seems evident that at least the eastern half of the North American triangulation system contains inherent systematic distortions expressed by the rotations at Meades Ranch

> $\theta_x = 1!!5 \pm 0.5$ (in the prime vertical plane to the west) $\theta_z = 1!!2 \pm 0.6$ (in azimuth to the east)

and by the scale factor

 $\epsilon = 4.1 \times 10^{-6} \pm 2.3$ (reduction)

No quantitative conclusion should be drawn on the western half since the available data (the number of stations) seems insufficient.

The same parameters corresponding to the whole NAD are

 $\theta_x = 1!!0 \pm 0.3$ (rotation in the prime vertical to the west) $\theta_z = 0!!9 \pm 0.3$ (rotation in azimuth to the east) $\epsilon = 4.4 \times 10^{-6} \pm 1.7$ (reduction)

REFERENCES

- Hotter, Frank D. <u>Preprocessing Optical Satellite Observations</u>. The Ohio State University Department of Geodetic Science Report No. 82, April, 1967, revised May, 1968. NASA CR-89081. (N67-38296)*.
- [2] Gross, Joseph. <u>Preprocessing Electronic Satellite Observations</u>. The Ohio State University Department of Geodetic Science Report No. 100, March 1968. NASA-CR-1183. (N69-11470)*.
- [3] Peat, Richard P. <u>A Method for Adjusting Simultaneous Range Obser-</u> vations on an Orbiting Geodetic Electromagnetic Satellite. The Ohio State University, MSc thesis, 1967.
- [4] Veach, James P. <u>Investigations into the Utilization of Passive</u> <u>Satellite Observational Data</u>. The Ohio State University Department of Geodetic Science Report No. 110, June 1968. (N68-36510)*.
- [5] Krakiwsky, Edward J., Georges Blaha, and Jack Ferrier. Least Squares Adjustment of Satellite Observations for Simultaneous Directions or Ranges, Part 2 of 3: Computer Programs. The Ohio State University Department of Geodetic Science Report No. 87, August 1968. (N69-10392)*.
- [6] Krakiwsky, Edward J. and Allen J. Pope. <u>Least Squares Adjustment</u> of Satellite Observations for Simultaneous Directions or Ranges, <u>Part 1</u> of 3: Formulation of Equations. The Ohio State University Department of Geodetic Science Report No. 86, September 1967. (N68-18763)*.
- [7] NASA/Goddard Space Flight Center. <u>Geodetic Satellites Observation</u> Station Directory. Compiled by Geonautics, Inc. July 1968.
- [8] Krakiwsky, Edward J., Jack Ferrier, James P. Reilly. <u>Least</u> <u>Squares Adjustment of Satellite Observations for Simultaneous Direc-</u> <u>tions or Ranges, Part 3 of 3: Subroutines.</u> The Ohio State University Department of Geodetic Science Report No. 88, December 1967. (N68-18724)*.
- [9] Schwarz, Charles R. <u>The Use of Short Arc Orbital Constraints in the Adjustment of Geodetic Satellite Data</u>. The Ohio State University Department of Geodetic Science Report No. 118, December 1968. (N69-26456)*.

- [10] Lambeck, Kurt. "A Spatial Triangulation Solution for a Global Network and the Position of the North American Datum Within It." Presented at the Annual Meeting of the American Geophysical Union, April 1969.
- [11] Mueller, Ivan I. Spherical and Practical Astronomy As Applied to Geodesy. New York: Frederick Ungar Publishing Co., Inc., 1969.
- Bursa, Milan. "On the Determination of the Direction of the Minor Axis of the Reference Ellipsoid and the Plane of the Initial Geodetic
 Meridian from Observations of Artificial Earth Satellites," <u>Studia</u> Geophysica et Geodaetica, Vol. 9, No. 1, pp. 14-22, 1965.
- [13] Wolf, Helmut. "Geometric Connection and Re-Orientation of Three-Dimensional Triangulation Nets," <u>Bulletin Géodésique</u>, No. 68, pp. 165-169, 1963.
- [14] Molodensky, M., V. Yeremeyev and M. Yurkina. <u>Methods for Study</u> of the External Gravitational Field and Figure of the Earth. Jerusalem: Israel Program for Scientific Translations, 1962. (OTS 61-31207)*.
- [15] Veis, G. "Geodetic Uses of Artificial Satellites," <u>Smithsonian</u> <u>Contributions to Astrophysics</u>, Vol. 3, No. 9, Smithsonian Institution, Washington, D.C., 1960.
- [16] Badekas, John. <u>Investigations Related to the Establishment of a</u> <u>World Geodetic System</u>. The Ohio State University Department of Geodetic Science Report No. 124, 1969.
- [17] Mueller, I.I. "Global Satellite Triangulation and Trilateration," Bulletin Géodésique, No. 87, pp. 53-71, 1968.
- [18] Simmons, L.G. "How Accurate is First Order Triangulation?" Surveying and Mapping, Vol. XI, No. 4, pp. 392-395, 1951.
- * indicates the number to be used when ordering a copy from Clearinghouse for Scientific and Technical Information, Springfield, Virginia 22151.